
 

 

Harwich Planning Board Agenda 

Tuesday, August 11, 2020 – 6:30 PM 

Griffin Room, Town Hall, 732 Main Street, Harwich 

This meeting will be held VIA REMOTE PARTICIPATION. 

Access is available through GoToMeeting.com and live broadcast on Channel 18 
 

Please join my meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone.  

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/358102773  

 

You can also dial in using your phone.  

United States: +1 (646) 749-3112  

 

Access Code: 358-102-773  

 

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:  

https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/358102773 
 

I. Call to Order  Pursuant to Governor Baker’s March 12, 2020 Order Suspending Certain Provisions of 

the Open Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §20, and the Governor’s March 15, 2020 Order imposing strict 

limitations on the number of people that may gather in one place, this meeting of the Harwich 

Planning Board is being conducted via remote participation. No in-person attendance of members of 

the public will be permitted, but every effort will be made to ensure that the public can adequately 

access the proceedings as provided for in the Order. A reminder, persons who would like to listen or 

view this meeting while in progress may do so by logging or calling in or calling as specified above. 
 

II. Public Hearing: 

A. Continued: PB2020-13 Davenport Companies Inc., applicant, c/o John M. O’Reilly, PE, PLS, 

representative, seeks approval of a Use Special Permit with waivers for a Two-Family dwelling 

pursuant to the Code of Town of Harwich §§ 325-13.A, -51 and -51.N as set forth in MGL c. 40A 

§9. The property is located at 0 Old Campground Road Map 30, Parcel C12 in the R-M District. 

Continued from June 25, 2020. The applicant has requested a withdrawal without prejudice. 

B. Continued: PB2020-14 Davenport Companies Inc., applicant, c/o John M. O’Reilly, PE, PLS, 

representative, seeks approval of a Use Special Permit with waivers for a Two-Family dwelling 

pursuant to the Code of Town of Harwich §§ 325-13.A, -51 and -51.N as set forth in MGL c. 40A 

§9. The property is located at 0 Old Campground Road Map 30, Parcel C11 in the R-M District. 

Continued from June 25, 2020. The applicant has requested a withdrawal without prejudice.  
C. PB2020-20 Ormon, Robert, as applicant c/o Rick Hamlin, E.T.S. & L., Inc., Wm. E. Crowell Jr., 

Trs., et al and Robert C. Chamberlain, Trs., seeks approval of a Use Special Permit pursuant to the 

Code of Town of Harwich §§325-13.D, ¶ IV, Line 2, and §325-51 for Automotive Service & 

Repair. The property is located at 524 Depot Street, Units 1 & 2, Maps 45, Parcel S2-1-1, in the I-

L zoning district. 

D. Zoning Amendment Public Hearing - In accordance with the provisions of MGL c.40A §5, the 

Harwich Planning Board will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, August 11, 2020 not earlier than 

6:30 pm in the Donn B. Griffin Room, Harwich Town Hall, 732 Main Street, Harwich, to consider 

an amendment to the Harwich Zoning Codes: 

Article ___: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Code of the Town of Harwich – Zoning 

by deleting the definition of “Essential Services” within §325-2 – Definitions and by deleting 

within §325-13 – Table 1, Paragraph II – Public and Quasi Public Uses, Item 3 – Essential 

services; facility, utilities.  

 
 

https://global.gotomeeting.com/join/358102773
tel:+16467493112,,358102773
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/358102773


 

 

III. Public Meeting* 
A. New Business: 

1. PB2020-22 Bryan Barrows, as owner, seeks approval of a Waiver of Site Plan Review 

pursuant to the Code of the Town of Harwich §325-55.F to construct / erect a temporary 

manufactured, two-bay, 50’ x 60’ fabric covered structure and an already improved lot. The 

property is located at 243 Queen Anne Road, Map 58, Parcel N4-3, in the I-L zoning district. 

2. Minutes: July 14, 2020 and July 28, 2020 

B. Old Business:  

1. PB2019-29 Davenport Companies request for a full covenant release in exchange for a 

cash surety – Celebration Way 

2. Continued discussion on West Harwich Special District zoning amendments  

C. Board reorganization & election of officers: Nomination(s) and votes on Chair & Vice-Chair/Clerk 

D. Briefings and Reports by Board Members 
 

IV. Adjourn 
 

*Per the Attorney General’s Office – Boards/Commissions may hold an open session for topics not 

reasonably anticipated by the Chair 48 hours in advance of the meeting following “New Business”. 
 

Next Planning Board Meeting (Subject to Change) – Tuesday, August 25, 2020. 

Requests for accommodations for any person having a disability can be made by contacting the 

Administration Office at 508-430-7513. 

 
Authorized Posting Officer: Elaine Banta, ebanta@town.harwich.ma.us or 508-430-7511 



Memorandum from 

Charleen Greenhalgh, Town Planner 

Town of Harwich 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEMS: II.A & II.B 
 

August 4, 2020 

 

To: Planning Board 

From: Charleen Greenhalgh 

Re: Davenport Case PB2020-13 

 Davenport Case PB2020-14 

 

 

The hearings for each of these cases must be reopened. 

 

Davenport Case PB2020-13 

 

The Applicant has requested a withdrawal without prejudice of this application.  

 

Although not required, the Board may wish to close the public hearing for 

PB2020-13. 

 

Recommended Motion: Move to allow for the withdrawal without prejudice of 

case PB2020-13 for Davenport Companies Inc.  

 

 

Davenport Case PB2020-14 

 

The Applicant has requested a withdrawal without prejudice of this application.  

 

Although not required, the Board may wish to close the public hearing for 

PB2020-14. 

 

Recommended Motion: Move to allow for the withdrawal without prejudice of 

case PB2020-14 for Davenport Companies Inc. 



1

Charleen Greenhalgh

From: John O'Reilly <joreilly@jmoreillyassoc.com>
Sent: Tuesday, August 4, 2020 10:32 AM
To: Charleen Greenhalgh; Christian Davenport
Cc: Elaine Banta; Alyson Konkol
Subject: RE: Harwich Cases PB2020-13 and 14

Charleen, 
At the request of the applicant, we are requested the two applications, PB2020-13 and PB2020-14 be Withdrawn 
Without Prejudice. 
 
Please let me know if you need anything more formal for the Board to take the requested action. 
 
Thank you and we apologize for the drawn out process. 
 
Be Safe 
John 
 

From: Charleen Greenhalgh <cgreenhalgh@town.harwich.ma.us>  
Sent: Monday, August 3, 2020 9:43 AM 
To: John O'Reilly <joreilly@jmoreillyassoc.com>; Christian Davenport <cdavenport@thedavenportcompanies.com> 
Cc: Elaine Banta <ebanta@town.harwich.ma.us> 
Subject: RE: Harwich Cases PB2020-13 and 14 
 
Good Morning: 
 
At this point I am thinking that a request for a withdrawal without prejudice might be in 
order. If I do not hear from you by the end of business today, my staff report to the Planning 
Board will recommend a denial as both application do not meet the minimum requirements. 
If they do deny, you cannot come back to the Board for 2 years. 
 
Please let me know how you would like to proceed. 
 
Thanks, 
Charleen 
 
Charleen Greenhalgh 
Town Planner 
Town of Harwich 
732 Main Street 
Harwich, MA 02645 
508-430-7511 
508-430-4703 fax 
cgreenhalgh@town.harwich.ma.us 
 
 



PB2020-20 Ormon Special Permit  Page 1 of 3 
 

 

TOWN PLANNER ● 732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 02645

               508-430-7511  fax: 508-430-4703 
 

 

Agenda Item II.C 
 

To:  Planning Board 

From: Charleen Greenhalgh, Town Planner 

Date: August 3, 2020 

Re: Use Special Permit Staff Report 

 

PB2020-20 Ormon, Robert, as applicant c/o Rick Hamlin, E.T.S. & L., Inc., Wm. E. 

Crowell Jr., Trs., et al and Robert C. Chamberlain, Trs., seeks approval of a Use Special 

Permit pursuant to the Code of Town of Harwich §§325-13.D, ¶ IV, Line 2, and §325-51 

for Automotive Service & Repair. The property is located at 524 Depot Street, Units 1 & 

2, Maps 45, Parcel S2-1-1, in the I-L zoning district. 

 

The Planning Board will hold a public hearing on this matter on Tuesday, August 11, 2020 not 

sooner than 6:30 P.M. Prior to commencing with the public hearing, documentation is 

required for the certified mailing to the abutters. 

 

Description 

The applicant seek a special permit for automotive service and repair for two units (Bays #1 and 

#2) within an existing industrial building, pursuant to §§325-13.D, ¶ IV, Line 2, and §325-51 of 

the Harwich Town Code. Seven parking spaces for the use are designated. The application and 

plans were filed with the Town Clerk on January 22, 2019, and includes the following: 

 

1. Form A Planning Board Application date received July 7, 2020. 

2. Letter dated July 7, 2020 from Rick Hamlin, President of ETS&L, Inc.  

3. “Proposed Site Plan” 524 Depot Street, Harwich, MA, dated 11/5/19, revised 12/9/19, 

scale 1”=20’ prepared by AJM Site Design, LLC. 

 

MGL Reference and Planning Board Jurisdiction 

Pursuant to MGL c.40 A, §9 the Planning Board must, within 65 days of submission of 

application for a special permit, hold a public hearing, and render a decision within 90-days of 

the close of the hearing. 

 

The Planning Board has jurisdiction to review this application pursuant to the Code of Town of 

Harwich Use Table and §325-51. 

 

Waiver: No waivers are requested. 
 

Fee: A filing fee of $525.00 was paid on July 7, 2020.  

 

  



PB2020-20 Ormon Special Permit  Page 2 of 3 
 

Comments from Other Boards/Committee/Departments: 

Health: Comments anticipated for the August 11th meeting. 

Engineering, Water, Fire, Police, Highway, Conservation: No concerns or comments 

 

Planning Staff Comments: 

1. This property may look familiar to the Planning Board. It was before you in December 

2019 for a Waiver of Site Plan, which was approved. 

2. This is an eight (8) bay industrial building providing 36 parking spaces overall 

3. The proposed automotive service and repair, per the July 7, 2020 letter from Mr. Hamlin, 

will comprise two (2) service bays with only one employee, the owner. There would only 

be one car per bay stored overnight. Two of the seven parking spaces are within the 

service bays themselves, with 5 additional spaces designated in the southwest corner of 

the parking lot. 

4. Planning Staff has no concerns; however imposing standard conditions are 

recommended. 

 

BOARD VOTE 

 

Continuance 

If the Board will require additional information or wants to take the matter under advisement the 

following motion is recommended: 
 

Move to continue the public hearing for PB2020-20 Robert Ormon, to no earlier than 6:30 

pm on ______ (Next Meeting Dates: August 25, September 10, September 22) for the 

following reason(s): Need to provide reasons for the continuance…additional information. 

 

IF BOARD IS READY TO RENDER A DECISION, THE FOLLOWING MOTIONS ARE PROVIDED: 

 

I. Vote to Close the Public Hearing 

 

Proposed Findings (Vote to Adopt) the following are suggested finding: 

1. The parcel is in the I-L zoning district. 

2. The existing site is suitable for the proposed use. 

3. Only one (1) employee is proposed. 

4. Only one car per bay shall be stored overnight. 

5. Parking as proposed is suitable. 

6. The use as proposed will not adversely affect the neighborhood. 

7. The specific site is an appropriate location for such a use. 

8. There will be no nuisance or serious hazard to vehicles or pedestrians. 

 

Use Special Permit (A vote by at least five members of the Planning Board is required) 

 

I. Move to approve a Use Special Permit for PB2020-20 Robert Ormon pursuant to the 

Code of Town of Harwich §§325-13.D, ¶ IV, Line 2, and §325-51 for Automotive 

Service & Repair for the property located at 524 Depot Street, Units 1 & 2, Maps 45, 

Parcel S2-1-1, in the I-L zoning district, based on the aforementioned findings of fact and 

the fact that the application meets the necessary requirements and criteria for approval. 



PB2020-20 Ormon Special Permit  Page 3 of 3 
 

II. Motion to approve with conditions a Use Special Permit for PB2020-20 Robert Ormon 

pursuant to the Code of Town of Harwich §§325-13.D, ¶ IV, Line 2, and §325-51 for 

Automotive Service & Repair for the property located at 524 Depot Street, Units 1 & 2, 

Maps 45, Parcel S2-1-1, in the I-L zoning district, based on the aforementioned findings 

of fact and the fact that the application meets the necessary requirements and criteria for 

approval; with the following conditions:  

 

1) Any changes or expansion of the use of Units 1 and 2, shall require further review 

and approval from the Planning Board. 

2) This Special Permit applies to Unit 1 and Unit 2 only. 

3) The Special Permit decision shall be recorded at the Registry of Deeds. 

 

III. Motion to deny a Use Special Permit for a Use Special Permit for PB2020-20 Robert 

Ormon pursuant to the Code of Town of Harwich §§325-13.D, ¶ IV, Line 2, and §325-51 

for Automotive Service & Repair for the property located at 524 Depot Street, Units 1 & 

2, Maps 45, Parcel S2-1-1, in the I-L zoning district, based on the fact(s) that…(need to 

provide reasons for denial) 





cgreenhalgh
Rectangle

cgreenhalgh
Rectangle









AGENDA ITEM II.D 
August 3, 2020 

To: Harwich Planning Board 
From: Charleen Greenhalgh, Town Planner 
Re: Zoning Amendment Public Hearing - Essential Services 

On June 25, 2020 the Planning Board voted unanimously to send the proposed zoning 
amendment relative to the removal of the term Essential Services to the Board of Selectmen to 
begin the public hearing process pursuant to MGL c.40A, §5. The proposed amendment was sent 
to the Board of Selectmen on July 1, 2020. 

On July 13, 2020 Board of Selectmen voted to refer the proposed zoning amendment relative to 
the removal of the term Essential Services to the Planning Board. This was forwarded to the 
Planning Board on July 14, 2020. 

The public hearing for this zoning amendment is scheduled for Tuesday, August 11, 2020, not 
earlier than 6:30 pm. 

The process for the hearing is as follows: 
1. The hearing must be opened and the legal notice must be read into the record.  
2. The proposal should be explained. 
3. The hearing must allow for public comments. 
4. The Board should discuss and deliberate. 
5. If the Board is ready to close the public hearing, do so; otherwise the hearing should be 

continued to a date and time certain. 
6. If the hearing is closed, the Board must then vote on a recommendation to the Town 

Meeting. This vote does not need to occur on the same night as the public hearing; but the 
Board must decide when it will take the vote up at a future meeting. A positive motion is 
also preferable and the vote should be by rollcall. 

Example: Move to approve the proposed zoning amendment and recommend it 
to the Town Meeting.

Memorandum from 
Charleen Greenhalgh, Town Planner 

Town of Harwich 



HARWICH PLANNING BOARD  

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE  

 

In accordance with the provisions of MGL c.40A §5, the Harwich Planning Board will hold a public hearing on Tuesday, August 11, 

2020 not earlier than 6:30 pm in the Donn B. Griffin Room, Harwich Town Hall, 732 Main Street, Harwich, 02645 to consider an 

amendment to the Harwich Zoning Codes as shown below. The meeting may be via REMOTE PARTICIPATION ONLY. Written 

comments may be submitted to the Planning Board at the address provided above or email he Town Planner, Charleen Greenhalgh, at 

cgreenhalgh@town.harwich.ma.us.  Anyone having interest this zoning amendment is invited to access the meeting via 

GoToMeeting.com. Instructions regarding how to access and participate in the meeting will be posted on the Planning Board’s 

Agenda page for the date of the meeting: https://www.harwich-ma.gov/node/2451/agenda/2020.  

 

Article ___: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Code of the Town of Harwich – Zoning by deleting the definition of 

“Essential Services” within §325-2 – Definitions and by deleting within §325-13 – Table 1, Paragraph II – Public and Quasi 

Public Uses, Item 3 – Essential services; facility, utilities.  

 

The full text for the proposed amendments can be found on the Planning Website at http://www.harwich-ma.gov/planning-board. 

 

In accordance with state law, this legal notice will also be available electronically at www.masspublicnotices.org. The Town is not 

responsible for any errors in the electronic posting of this legal notice. 

 

Joseph P. McParland, Chair,  

Cape Cod Chronicle 7/23/2020, 7/30/2020 

 

 

 

On the following page are relative portions of the existing provisions of the Harwich Zoning Code to be amendment 

relative to “Essential Services” 

Language to be deleted is shown in strike-thru 

  

mailto:cgreenhalgh@town.harwich.ma.us
https://www.harwich-ma.gov/node/2451/agenda/2020
http://www.harwich-ma.gov/planning-board
http://www.masspublicnotices.org/


§ 325-2 Word usage and definitions.  
 

For the purpose of this bylaw certain terms and words shall have the meaning given herein. Words used in the present tense include 

the future; the singular number includes the plural, and the plural includes the singular; the word "building," "structure," "lot," "land" 

or "premises" shall be construed as though followed by the words "or any portion thereof"; and the word "shall" is always mandatory 

and not merely directory. The word "person" includes a firm, association, organization, partnership, trust, or company as well as an 

individual. The word "used" or "occupied" includes the words "intended or designed or arranged to be used." The word "lot" includes 

the word "plot" or "parcel." 
 

ESSENTIAL SERVICES 

Services and appurtenant structures, facilities, uses or equipment provided by governmental agencies, including the Town of 

Harwich, or provided by public utility or public service companies, including but not limited to water distribution systems, 

Town-owned marinas, docking areas, fish piers, off-loading facilities, retaining walls, jetties and similar structures, gas and 

electric distribution, systems for telecommunications and sewerage systems. 
 

§325-13 – Table 1, Paragraph II – Public and Quasi Public Uses, Item 3 – Essential services; facility, utilities. 
 

 

Use RR RL RM RH-1 RH-2 RH-3 CV CH-1 CH-2 IL MRL MRL-1 WR 

Paragraph II – Public and Quasi-Public Uses 

1 Church or other religious purposes P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

2 Educational use, nonprofit P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

3 Essential service: facility, utilities S S S S S S S S S S S S S 

4 Institutional use, other S S S S S S S S S S S S S 

5 Municipal use P P P P P P P P P P P P P 

6 Nonprofit library, museum or 

historical use 

S S S - - - - - - - S S P 

7 Personal wireless facility, 45 to 

150 feet (§ 325-14P; Article XI) 

S S S - - - - S S S - - S 

8 Personal wireless facility, up to 

45 feet (§ 325-14P; Article XI) 

S S S S S S S S S S S S S 

9 Hospice S S S - - - S S - - S S S 

10 Nursing home S S S - - - S S - S S S S 

11 Assisted living facility S S S - - - S S - - S S S 

https://ecode360.com/12263031#12263031


PB2020-22 Barrows WSP Staff Report  Page 1 of 3 

 

 

TOWN PLANNER ● 732 Main Street, Harwich, MA 02645

   508-430-7511  fax: 508-430-4703 
 

Agenda Item III.A.1 

 

To: Planning Board 

From: Charleen Greenhalgh, Town Planner 

Date: August 3, 2020 

Re: Waiver of Site Plan Request – Staff Report 

 

PB2020-22 Bryan Barrows, as owner, seeks approval of a Waiver of Site Plan Review 

pursuant to the Code of the Town of Harwich §325-55.F to construct / erect a temporary 

manufactured, two-bay, 50’ x 60’ fabric covered structure on an improved lot. The 

property is located at 243 Queen Anne Road, Map 58, Parcel N4-3, in the I-L zoning 

district.  

 

The Planning Board will take this application up during the public meeting on Tuesday, August 

11, 2020 not sooner than 6:30 P.M.  

 

Description 

The applicant seeks to construct a 50’ x 60’ (3,000 s.f.) “temporary” fabric covered structure 

through the Waiver of Site Plan provision of the zoning bylaws.  

 

The Waiver of Site Plan application was filed with the Town Clerk on July 27, 2020 and 

included the following: 

1. Form A application 

2. A narrative. 

3. A copy of the PB2013-16 Site Plan decision. 

4. Sketch Plan Showing Proposed Temporary Structure, 243 Queen Anne Rd., Harwich, MA 

for Barrows Excavating, dated 08-20-2019, scale shown at 1” = 40’ (hand noted scale 1” = 

60’) 

5. Set of Structural Engineering Calculations, for Project: 50x60.20 Ji Garcia; Project 

Location: 2494 S. Railroad Ave., Fresno, CA; Date: 01/29/2019; stamped by Nabil Taha, 

Ph.D., P.E. (California). 

 

Planning Board Jurisdiction 

The Planning Board has jurisdiction pursuant to §325-55, specifically subparagraph “F” – 

Waiver of Site Plan. “When in the opinion of the Planning Board the requirements of Subsection 

C, Applicability, do not substantially change the relationship of the structure to the site and to 

abutting properties and structures, the Planning Board may determine, without a public hearing, 

that submission of a site plan for special permit approval is not required.  An affirmative vote by 

a majority of the Planning Board present and in no event fewer than four members of the 

Planning Board is required.” 

 

Comments from other Boards, Departments, Committees 

Health: Comments are anticipated for the August 11th meeting. 

 

 



PB2020-22 Barrows WSP Staff Report  Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 

 

Building: Temporary Structures are permitted for a duration of 180 days or less by the building 

code. 

Engineering: What does temporary mean? There is no description as to the temporary nature of 

the proposed structure. Will the structure be removed and reconstructed annually? Based on 

the off-street parking schedule, warehousing required 1 parking space per employee 

maximum shift, plus 1 per 1,000 square feet. Therefore the temporary structure would require 

a minimum of 3 parking spaces. No information regarding available parking is provided. 

What is proposed for drainage infrastructure associated with the temporary structure and the 

resulting increase in impervious area for the site? Additionally, the Town Engineering and 

the Town Planner reviewed the application and plan together. Please see Planning Staff 

Comments below. 

Police, Fire and Conservation: No concerns. 

 

Planning Staff Comments 

1. This is a public meeting matter and not a public hearing. 

2. The Town Engineer and I reviewed the plan together on July 30, 2020. A number of 

questions and concerns were raised, including: 

a. What is the schedule for this building? 

b. The building plans are not stamped by a Massachusetts P.E. 

c. How is the building secure to the ground? 

d. There is no zoning table or parking schedule. 

e. No drainage has been provided. 

3. This is not a small increase in the building coverage. 3,000 square feet is a large building. 

4. The Town Engineer and I both agree that a denial of the Waiver of Site Plan is in order 

based on the follow: 

a. This is a large building, which we do not believe qualifies as a “temporary structure”  

b. No drainage, zoning or parking has been provided 

c. A Waiver of Site Plan cannot condition a “timeframe” for the removal of a temporary 

structure. 

d. The proposed structure does substantially change the relationship of the structure to 

the site. 

5. A denial would require the applicant to seek a full site plan approval. 

6. The Town Engineer has been in contact with the applicant and has been made aware of 

staff concerns. 

 

Board Votes 

 

Vote to Continue  

 

Motion to continue PB2020-22 Bryan Barrows, to the following meeting date 

__________________ (next meetings August 25, September 10, September 22), no earlier 

than 6:30 pm in the Griffin Room, Harwich Town Hall for the following reasons: (need to 

state reasons) 

 

  



PB2020-22 Barrows WSP Staff Report  Page 3 of 3 

 

 

 

 

If the Board is ready to vote on the request: 

 

Findings of Fact (amend or change as necessary)  

 

PLEASE NOTE: These finding of fact are written in the negative. 

 

Motion to adopt the following findings of fact: 

1. The parcel is in the IL zoning district. 

2. The application does substantially change the relationship of the structure to the site. 

3. The application as submitted does not provide adequate information regarding, at a 

minimum, zoning, parking and drainage. 

 

 

Waiver of Site Plan (Pursuant to § 325-55(F) of the Code) – Suggested Motions: 

 

1. To Deny case Bryan Barrows, as owner, seeks approval of a Waiver of Site Plan Review 

pursuant to the Code of the Town of Harwich §325-55.F to construct / erect a temporary 

manufactured, two-bay, 50’ x 60’ fabric covered structure on an improved lot. The property 

is located at 243 Queen Anne Road, Map 58, Parcel N4-3, in the I-L zoning district, based on 

the fact that the proposal does demonstrate substantial changes with the relationship of the 

structure to the site and the application has submitted does not provided adequate 

information, including but not limited to, zoning, parking and drainage and therefore requires 

a Site Plan Review Special Permit. 

 

2. To Approve case PB2020-22 Bryan Barrows, as owner, seeks approval of a Waiver of Site 

Plan Review pursuant to the Code of the Town of Harwich §325-55.F to construct / erect a 

temporary manufactured, two-bay, 50’ x 60’ fabric covered structure and on an improved lot. 

The property is located at 243 Queen Anne Road, Map 58, Parcel N4-3, in the I-L zoning 

district. The decision is based on the findings of facts stated and the fact that the proposal 

does not substantially change the relationship of the structure to the site or to abutting 

properties and structures and the application meets the necessary requirements and criteria 

for approval. 

 

 



























Planning Board Minutes July 14, 2020  Page 1 of 4 
 

HARWICH PLANNING BOARD 

HARWICH TOWN HALL - 732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH 

VIA REMOTE PARTICIPATION GoToMeeting.com 

THURSDAY JULY 14, 2020 – 6:30 PM 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman, Joseph McParland; Arthur Rouse; David Harris; 

Mary Maslowski; William Stoltz; Craig Chadwick; and Duncan Berry were all present via 

remote participation.  

 

BOARD MEMBERS ABSENT: Vice-Chairman, Allan Peterson.  

 

OTHERS PRESENT: Charleen Greenhalgh; Thadd Eldredge; Chloe Schaeffer; Sarah Korjeff. 
 

CALL TO ORDER - 6:30 PM by Chairman McParland with a quorum present. 

 

Pursuant to Governor Baker’s March 12, 2020 Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open 

Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §20, and the Governor’s March 15, 2020 Order imposing strict 

limitations on the number of people that may gather in one place, this meeting of the Harwich 

Planning Board is being conducted via remote participation. No in-person attendance of 

members of the public will be permitted, but every effort will be made to ensure that the public 

can adequately access the proceedings as provided for in the Order. A reminder that persons who 

would like to listen or view this meeting while in progress may do so by logging in or calling in 

as specified above on this agenda. 
 

PB2020-13 Davenport Companies Inc., Use Special Permit, 0 Old Campground Road 
Representative: John M. O’Reilly, PE, PLS 

 

Chairman McParland re-opened the hearing by reading the legal notice into the record. Applicant 

seeks approval of a Use Special Permit with waivers for a Two-Family dwelling pursuant to the 

Code of Town of Harwich §§ 325-13.A, -51 and -51.N as set forth in MGL c. 40A §9. The 

property is located at 0 Old Campground Road Map 30, Parcel C12 in the R-M District. 

Continued from June 25, 2020. The Applicant has requested a continuance to 8/11/20. 

 

Ms. Maslowski moved to continue the public hearing to Tuesday, August 11, 2020 not earlier 

than 6:30 pm, seconded by Mr. Chadwick, so voted unanimously by rollcall vote 7-0-0. 

 

PB2020-14 Davenport Companies Inc., Use Special Permit, 0 Old Campground Road 

Representative: John M. O’Reilly, PE, PLS 

 

Chairman McParland re-opened the hearing by reading the legal notice into the record. Applicant 

seeks approval of a Use Special Permit with waivers for a Two-Family dwelling pursuant to the 

Code of Town of Harwich §§ 325-13.A, -51 and -51.N as set forth in MGL c. 40A §9. The 

property is located at 0 Old Campground Road Map 30, Parcel C11 in the R-M District. 

Continued from June 25, 2020. The Applicant has requested a continuance to 8/11/20. 

 

Mr. Berry moved to continue the public hearing to Tuesday, August 11, 2020 not earlier than 

6:30 pm, seconded by Mr. Chadwick, so voted unanimously by rollcall vote 7-0-0. 



Planning Board Minutes July 14, 2020  Page 2 of 4 
 

PB2020-19 Bryan Murphy, Approval Not Required, 0 Kendrick Road 
Representative: Thadd Eldredge, PLS 

 

Applicant seeks endorsement of a two (2) lot ANR entitled “Division Plan off Blue Heron 

Landing”, dated April 1, 2020, revised 05-20-2020 prepared by J. Thaddeus Eldredge, PLS for 

property located at 0 Kendrick Road, Map 108, Parcel P3. The parcels are in the R-R zoning 

district. 

 

Mr. Eldredge explained that the ANR was originally supported by the Board, but they are 

proposing slight changes. 

 

Mrs. Greenhalgh presented departmental input and the planners report into the record. The Board 

may: 1) Vote to endorse the ANR; or 2) Deny the ANR specifically detailing why it does not 

meet the requirements for endorsement as an ANR; or 3) Take no action; which would result in 

the Town Clerk certifying that the Planning Board took no action within the statutory time. Staff 

comments: Planning: 1. This appears to be a simple land swap between this parcel and an 

abutting parcel, which contain sufficient frontage per Note 4 on the plan. Police and Fire: No 

comments Conservation: Parcel will have some portion in Conservation jurisdiction-we don’t 

have issue with property lines, but may need approval if development occurs. Health: If the lots 

are ever developed, compliant Title 5 septic systems must be installed. No variances from state 

or local requirements will be granted. 

 

Ms. Maslowski made the motion that said the plan does not constitute a subdivision as the way 

shown on the plan is a public way maintained and used as a public way and has, in the opinion of 

the planning board, sufficient width, suitable grades and adequate construction to provide for the 

needs of vehicular traffic in relation to the proposed use of the land abutting thereon or served 

thereby, and for the installation of municipal services to serve such land and the buildings 

erected or to be erected thereon, seconded by Mr. Chadwick, unanimously so voted by rollcall 

vote 6-0-0 (Mr. Rouse was ineligible to vote). 

 

Ms. Maslowski made the motion to endorse the ANR plan entitled “Division Plan off Blue 

Heron Landing”, dated April 1, 2020, Revised 05-20-2020, prepared by J. Thaddeus Eldredge, 

PLS., seconded by Mr. Chadwick, unanimously so voted by rollcall vote 6-0-0 (Mr. Rouse was 

ineligible to vote). 

 

PRELIMINARY DISCUSSION: Draft West Harwich District of Critical Planning Concern 

zoning amendments 

 

Mrs. Greenhalgh explained that the Board of Selectmen nominated the West Harwich corridor of 

Route 28 from the Dennisport Town Line east to the Herring River as a District of Critical 

Planning Concern (“DCPC”). The Barnstable County Commissioners approved the nomination 

and it became a County Ordinance (19-18) on December 4, 2019. The Town has 1 year to 

implement bylaws. Originally the Selectmen agreed to provide adequate time for the drafting and 

vetting of the necessary bylaws and that there would likely be a special town meeting in the fall 

2020 to take these up; however, with the COVID-19 Emergency the annual town meeting was 

postponed, pushing everything to the fall. 

 



Planning Board Minutes July 14, 2020  Page 3 of 4 
 

In the Board’s packet was a July 7, 2020 version of a working draft document for discussion 

purposes only. This was also sent out to those who have signed up to receive emails regarding 

the West Harwich DCPC. Mrs. Greenhalgh began the discussion by stating that Chloe Schaeffer 

and Sarah Korjeff, from the Cape Cod Commission were on the call. They proceeded presented 

their input and a lengthy discussion ensued. The draft document contains:  

 

§325-144 Statutory Authority and Purpose 

§325-145 Intent 

§325-145 Applicability 

§325-146 Definitions 

§325-147 Permitted Uses 

§325-148 Special Permit Uses 

§325-149 Prohibited Uses 

§325-150 Continuation of Pre-Existing Non-Conforming Uses 

§325-151 Change, Alteration, Expansion of Pre-Existing Non-Conforming Uses 

§325-153 Design Guidelines 

§325-154 Review Standards 

§325-1XX Review Procedures – (Note: this section needs more thought) 

 

Mr. Berry praised the draft, and all the hard work that went into the document.  

 

A lengthy discussion ensued. 

 

Mr. Chadwick asked for information on the process and procedure, and raised concerns with the 

timeframe. Mrs. Greenhalgh responded that there is a provision allowing a six month extension. 

The town may not have to put the whole bylaw together now, but would need a portion of the 

DCPC in place before the December deadline. 

 

Ms.  Korjeff confirmed that the DCPC process has provisions allowing a six month extension, 

but that does not need to be discussed tonight. 

 

A lengthy discussion ensued. 

 

Mr. Harris again raised the question of time frame, and getting all the information to the public. 

Mrs. Greenhalgh stated that a video providing the public with the details of the draft special 

district bylaw could be made to get the information out to the public. If members of the board 

have questions relating to the working draft they should send them to her and they should keep 

moving forward with the draft. 

 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS: Advisory Opinions for July 29, 2020 hearings- None.  

 

MEETING MINUTES: Ms. Maslowski made the motion to accept the minutes from June 25, 

2020 meeting, seconded by Mr. Berry, unanimously so voted via roll call.  

 

A brief recess was requested by Chairman McParland.  

 

OLD BUSINESS: Continued discussion on draft amendment to Multi-family Dwelling related 

Bylaws 



Planning Board Minutes July 14, 2020  Page 4 of 4 
 

When the meeting resumed, Mrs. Greenhalgh stated that she prepared a draft as requested, and 

the Board has already initialed reviewed the changes.  

 

A lengthy discussion ensued. 

 

The board ultimately requested that a revised draft be presented at the next meeting. 

 

BRIEFINGS AND REPORTS BY BOARD MEMBERS: 

 

Mr. Chadwick gave praise to Mrs. Greenhalgh and staff on the procedure for signature.  

 

ADJOURNMENT:  

 

Ms. Maslowski made the motion to adjourn at 7:47 PM, seconded by Mr. Chadwick, unanimously 

so voted via roll call. 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Kathleen A. Tenaglia, Board Secretary  

 

 

Adopted: 

 



Page 1 of 4 
 

HARWICH PLANNING BOARD 

HARWICH TOWN HALL - 732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH 

VIA REMOTE PARTICIPATION GoToMeeting.com 

TUESDAY JULY 28, 2020 – 6:30 PM 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: Chairman, Joseph McParland; Vice-Chairman, Allan 

Peterson; Arthur Rouse; David Harris; Mary Maslowski; William Stoltz; Craig Chadwick; and 

Duncan Berry were all present via remote participation.  

 

OTHERS PRESENT: Charleen Greenhalgh; Paul Sweetser; Susan Ladue; Sara Korjeff; and 

others. 

 

CALL TO ORDER - 6:30 PM by Chairman McParland with a quorum present. 

 

Pursuant to Governor Baker’s March 12, 2020 Order Suspending Certain Provisions of the Open 

Meeting Law, G.L. c. 30A, §20, and the Governor’s March 15, 2020 Order imposing strict 

limitations on the number of people that may gather in one place, this meeting of the Harwich 

Planning Board is being conducted via remote participation. No in-person attendance of 

members of the public will be permitted, but every effort will be made to ensure that the public 

can adequately access the proceedings as provided for in the Order. A reminder that persons who 

would like to listen or view this meeting while in progress may do so by logging in or calling in 

as specified above on this agenda. 

 

Ms. Maslowski recused herself from the next hearing. 

 

PB2020-02 Steve Gopoyan & Swavi Osev, 346 Route 28 & 0 Sisson Road, Use Special 

Permit  

 

Chairman McParland opened the hearing by reading the legal notice into the record. Emulous E 

Hall, et als., as owners, seeks approval of a Site Plan Review Special Permit and a Use Special 

Permit with waivers, pursuant to the Code of Town of Harwich §§325-13, ¶IV Line 30, -55 and -

51 to construct a miniature golf course and expand and improve the parking and vehicle access. 

The property is located at 346 Route 28 and 0 Sisson Road, Maps 21, Parcels N1 & N2, 

respectively, in the C-H-1 and R-M zoning districts. Continued from 3/10/2020 & 6/9/2020. 

Applicant requests a continuance to August 25, 2020.  

 

Mr. Chadwick made the motion to continue the hearing to August 25, 2020 no earlier than 6:30, 

seconded by Mr. Harris, unanimously so voted via roll call 7-0-0. 

 

Ms. Maslowski returned to the meeting. 

 

PB2020-21 Herbert Bell, 812 & 814 Route 28, Approval Not Required  

Representative: Paul Sweetser, P.L.S. 

 



Page 2 of 4 
 

Chairman McParland opened the hearing by reading the legal notice into the record. Gloria 

Green, TR and Valerie G. and Herbert G. Bell, owners. The applicant seek endorsement of an 

Approval Not Required plan to reconfigure the two lots pursuant to M.G.L. c. §81 P and §400-9 

of the Code of the Town of Harwich. The plan is entitled “Plan of Land in Harwich Port, MA” 

dated June 30, 2020, for property located at 812 and 814 Route 28, Map 24, Parcels T3 and T3-1 

respectively. The parcels are in the R-R & C-H-1 zoning districts.  

 

Paul Sweetser began the hearing by explaining the proposed ANR plan. He explained that the 

properties still both meet the 150’ of frontage. 

 

Mrs. Greenhalgh read the staff report and departmental input into the record. The Board may: 1) 

Vote to endorse the ANR; or 2) Deny the ANR specifically detailing why it does not meet the 

requirements for endorsement as an ANR; or 3) Take no action; which would result in the Town 

Clerk certifying that the Planning Board took no action within the statutory time. Planning: This 

is a simple land swap. The lots sizes remain the same and each lot will now have frontage on 

either Route 28 or Willow Street. Health and Engineering: No comments 

 

Mr. Chadwick asked for clarification on the lot frontage, which was answered by the Town 

Planner. 

 

Ms. Maslowski made the motion that said plan does not constitute a subdivision as the way 

shown on the plan is a way in existence when the subdivision control law became effective and 

has, in the opinion of the planning board, sufficient width, suitable grades and adequate 

construction to provide for the needs of vehicular traffic in relation to the proposed use of the 

land abutting thereon or served thereby, and for the installation of municipal services to serve 

such land and the buildings erected or to be erected thereon, seconded by David Harris, 

unanimously so voted via roll call. 

 

Ms. Maslowski made the motion to endorse the ANR plan entitled “Plan of Land in Harwich 

Port, MA” dated June 30, 2020, scale 1” = 40’, prepared by Paul E. Sweetser, for property 

located at 812 and 814 Route 28, Map 24, Parcels T3 and T3-1 respectively and in the R-R & C-

H-1 zoning districts, seconded by Mr. Chadwick, unanimously so voted via roll call. 

 

PB2020-12 Eastward Home Business Trust, Endorsement of Modification Plan  

Represented: Susan Ladue 

 

Mrs. Greenhalgh stated that the 20-day appeal period is over and no one has appealed the plan. 

Ms. Ladue explained that the plan was approved by the Board on May 12, the appeal period has 

expired, and they are looking for endorsement. 

 

Ms. Maslowski made the motion to endorse the Modification Plan for PB2020-12 Eastward 

Home Business Trust, seconded by Mr. Chadwick, unanimously so voted via roll call (7-0-0). 

 

PB2018-13 & PB2020-12 Eastward Home Business Trust complete release of covenant in 

exchange for a cash surety.  

Represented: Susan Ladue 



Page 3 of 4 
 

 

 

Ms. Ladue explained that they are looking for a complete release of covenant. They are 

requesting that the sidewalks be finished at the time of construction, and are willing to provide 

funds for surety. 

 

Mrs. Greenhalgh explained that she and the Town Engineer have reviewed the proposal, and 

calculated the total contingency calculation to be valued at $13,597.50, rounding up to $13,598.  

 

Chairman McParland made the motion to approve and sign the full covenant release for cases 

PB2018-13 & PB2020-12 Eastward Home Business Trust for the Bascom Hollow subdivision 

and modification plans in exchange for a performance cash surety in the amount of $13,598, to 

be held in an interest bearing account with the Harwich Town Treasurer. The signed covenant 

release shall not be relinquished to the applicant until the Modification Plan and Decision for 

Case PB2020-12 are recorded at the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds and said recording 

documentation is submitted to the Planning Office, seconded by Mr. Berry, unanimously so 

voted via roll call (7-0-0) 

 

DISCUSSION ON WEST HARWICH SPECIAL DISTRICT ZONING AMENDMENTS 

AND POSSIBLE SPECIAL WORKING MEETING  

 

Mrs. Greenhalgh and Cape Cod Commission (“CCC”) Staff had a video conference on July 27th 

and there was a constructive discussion and the staff provided a number of comments and 

discussion points that she has incorporated into a working draft dated July 28, 2020. This was 

sent out to the Board members and an email list of folks interested in the West Harwich DCPC. 

She and CCC Staff are also planning a public workshop via remote participation on August 4, 

2020.  

 

A very lengthy discussion ensued regarding the timeline, town meeting, and specifics about the 

document. Sara Korjeff offered up guidance and clarification.  

 

Mrs. Greenhalgh stated that the next draft will be ready after the August 4th meeting, and it will 

incorporate the comments and requested changes. 

 

The Board ultimately decided to follow up on the topic at a later date, once the next draft is 

available.  

 

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE VOTE ON REFERRAL OF AMENDMENTS RELATED 

TO MULTI-FAMILY DWELLING ZONING BY LAWS TO THE BOARD OF 

SELECTMEN  

 

Mrs. Greenhalgh stated that the amendment is presented in their packets. Many comments were 

received from Board members. She explained the documents provided, and presented the 

changes. The complete document was read through and explained.  

 



Page 4 of 4 
 

A lengthy discussion ensued. The Board made several changes to the amendment, including that 

3.5 stories will be the maximum, not 3.  

 

Mr. Chadwick made the motion to refer the Multi-Family dwelling zoning bylaw amendment to 

the Board of Selectmen to start the public hearing process, seconded by Vice-Chairman Peterson. 

All members voted positively, with the exception of Mr. Stoltz, who voted in opposition.  

 

BOARD REORGANIZATION & ELECTION OF OFFICERS:  
Chairman McParland continued this topic to August 11, 2020.  

 

BRIEFINGS AND REPORTS BY BOARD MEMBERS: None. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  

Ms. Maslowski made the motion to adjourn, seconded by Mr. Chadwick, unanimously so voted 

via roll call. 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Kathleen A. Tenaglia, Board Secretary  

 

 

Adopted: 
 



Memorandum from 

Charleen Greenhalgh, Town Planner 

Town of Harwich 

 

 

 

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM III.B.1 
 

 

August 4, 2020  

 

 

To: Harwich Planning Board 

Cc: Christian Davenport, Davenport Companies 

Re: Full Release of Covenant for Celebration Way – PB2019-29 
 

The applicant has requested a complete release of covenant for the Celebration Way subdivision 

off Headwaters Drive. The request was made on July 6, 2020. The Board has 45 days to act on 

this request (August 20, 2020). 
 

The Town Engineer has reviewed the request and a copy of his report is attached. The 

recommended amount for the cash surety is $361, 426.50.50. A draft copy of the release is also 

attached in the amount of $361,463.00.  A check in the amount of $361,463, should be delivered 

to the Planning Department prior to noon on August 11, 2020. In the event the cash surety is not 

received, Planning Staff recommend that the Board approve the release of covenant in exchange 

for the cash surety and we will hold the signed release until such time as cash surety has been 

received. 
 

The signed covenant release shall not be relinquished to the applicant until the cash surety has 

been deposited with the Town. 

 

Recommended Motions: 

 

Move to approve and sign the full covenant release and the performance cash surety for case 

PB2019-29 Davenport Companies for the Celebration Way subdivision, said covenant release is 

in exchange for a performance cash surety in the amount of $361,463, to be held in an interest 

bearing account with the Harwich Town Treasurer.  

 



Phone: (508) 430-7508 

Engineering Department Fax: (508) 432-4703 

           732 MAIN STREET, HARWICH, MA 02645 

MEMO 
TO: Charleen Greenhalgh, Town Planner 

FROM: Griffin Ryder, Town Engineer 

RE:  Celebration Way Construction Cost Estimate 

DATE: August 4, 2020 

I have conducted a review of the cost estimates provided by the Davenport Companies from 
Barrows Excavating (Barrows) and GFM Enterprises, Inc. (GFM) for the construction of the 
approved Celebration Way subdivision roadway.  The cost estimate provided by Barrows is 
incomplete as paving didn’t appear to be included.  Therefore, the cost estimate provided by 
GFM has been utilized to determine the cost of the roadway construction work. 

The cost estimate from GFM did not include an estimated fee for setting the concrete bounds 
or developing a final as-built plan.  The engineer and surveyor of record for the subdivision 
design, Ryder & Wilcox, Inc., has provided a supplemental cost estimate for setting the 
bounds and the final as-built plan. The final cost estimate includes the following: 

 Erosion Control $ 2,425.00 
 Site Clearing, Grubbing, & Tree Removal  $ 8,425.00 
 Excavation  $13,975.00 
 Water Utilities  $52,500.00 
 Storm Drainage Utilities $59,725.00 
 Asphalt Prep/Paving  $79,050.00 
 Finish Grade/Loam/Seed $ 5,350.00 
 Miscellaneous (retaining wall)   $12,025.00 
 Setting concrete bounds and As-Built Plan  $ 7,500.00 
 Total Cost Estimate  $240,975.00 
 Total Cost Estimate @ 150% $361,462.50 

The total cost to construct Celebration Way is $240,975.00. Using the 150% cost contingency
calculation the total value to be provided by the proponent should be $361,462.50.  
 



    

TOWN OF HARWICH PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

FULL RELEASE OF COVENANT    Date: August 12, 2020 
 

Covenantor(s): Estate of James G. Marceline, owner and Davenport Companies, applicant 
 
Covenant(s):  Book 32590 Page 128 (Celebration Way - Plan Book 683 Page 99) 
 
The undersigned, being a majority of the Planning Board of the Town of Harwich, Massachusetts 
acknowledges satisfaction of the terms thereof and hereby releases, for the purposes of conveyance or 
construction and/or its rights, title and interest in the lots on said plan numbered 1-4 (Full Release) and 
located in Harwich, MA according to the subdivision plan described in the above covenant. Said release 
is made in exchange for a cash surety performance guarantee from the applicant and on file with the 
Town of Harwich. 
 

It is the opinion of the undersigned that the cash surety performance guarantee shall cover the costs 
associated with the construction of ways, municipal services and all other required improvements to 
provide access to and directly serve the above enumerated lots to be constructed in a manner which 
meets the requirements of the Harwich Subdivision Control Law and the rules and regulations thereof, 
and shall be constructed in conformity with the approved plans, cross-sections and profiles of this 
subdivision. 

Planning Board Member Signatures 
 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 
 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 
 

_____________________________  _____________________________ 
 

_____________________________ 
  

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
 

County of Barnstable    On this                      of                                            ,                         
                                Day                                    Month                                        Year 
 
Before me, the undersigned Notary public, personally appeared                                                                       
                                                                                                                                                          Name of Document Signer 
  
Proved to me through satisfactory evidence of identification, which was/were 

 

___________________________________________________________ 
Description of Evidence of Identification 

  
To be the person whose name is signed on the preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that 
he/she signed it voluntarily for its stated purpose. 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                 
                                                                                                                       Signature of Notary Public 

  
                                                                                                        
                                                 Printed Name of Notary Public 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                      
                                                                                                                                                  My Commission Expires (Date)  

PLANNING BOARD   
 



 

 

TOWN OF HARWICH PLANNING BOARD 
 

PERFORMANCE SECURED BY DEPOSIT OF MONEY 
 
AGREEMENT made this date August 11, 2020, between the Town of Harwich, acting 
by and through the Harwich Planning Board, and Davenport Companies who has a 
usual place of business at 20 North Main Street, So. Yarmouth, MA 02664 (the 
“Applicant”), to secure construction of ways and installation of municipal services and 
other improvements for the subdivision of land located off Headwaters Road and known 
as Celebration Way (Assessor’s Map 81), Lots 1- 4 and owned by Marceline, Estate of 
James G. and shown on a plan entitled “Definitive Subdivision Plan” prepared for The 
Davenport Companies, prepared by Philip O. Scholomiti, P.L.S., dated 07/11/2019 and 
revised 10/18/2019, that depicts four (4) residential building lots and was granted 
definitive subdivision approval by the Planning Board pursuant to a Certificate of 
Approval (Decision) filed with the Harwich Town Clerk on October 10, 2019. 
 
KNOW ALL PERSONS by these presents that the Applicant hereby binds and obligates 
itself/himself/herself/themselves and the Applicant’s executors, administrators, 
devisees, heirs, successors and assigns to the Town of Harwich, acting by and through 
the Harwich Planning Board, in the sum of Three hundred sixty one thousand four 
hundred and sixty three dollars ($361,463), and has secured this obligation by 
depositing with the Town of Harwich Treasurer a deposit of money in the 
aforementioned sum to be deposited in a subdivision escrow account in the name of the 
Town of Harwich.  Said deposit shall be used to insure the performance by the 
Applicant of all covenants, conditions, agreements, terms and provisions contained in 
the following documents: 
 

1) The Application for approval of the definitive division plan, dated 07/11/2019 
and revised 10/18/2019 (case # PB2019-29); 

2) The Subdivision Control Law, G.L.  c.41; 
3) The Planning Boards applicable Subdivision Rules and Regulations; 
4) The conditions set forth in the Certificate of Approval issued by the Planning 

and filed with the Harwich Town Clerk on October 10, 2019 and recorded with 
the Barnstable County Registry of Deeds at Book 32590, Page 125 and Plan 
Book 683, Page 99; 

5) The definitive plan as qualified by the Certificate of Approval and as 
hereinafter endorsed and recorded; and 

6) The following additional documents that set forth construction or installation 
requirements:    
A. Plan and Profile, Celebration Way, dated 07/11/2019 and revised further 

10/18/2019, Sheet 1 of 2. 
B. Cross Sections & Details - Private Way, dated 07/11/2019, revised 

10/07/2019, Sheet 2 of 2.   
C. Code of the Town Harwich §400-17.G 
D. Town Engineer’s memo, “Celebration Way Construction Cost Estimates”, 

dated August 4, 2020. 
  
   



 

 

This Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until the Applicant has fully and 
satisfactorily performed all of the obligations secured hereunder or has elected to 
provide another method of securing performance as provided for under G.L. c.41, §81U, 
§7, et. seq.  Furthermore, in the event that increased security is required to be posted, 
the Applicant agrees that the Applicant shall post said security in a timely manner.   
 
Upon satisfactory and timely completion of all of the obligations secured hereunder, the 
deposit of money made hereunder, including any interest accrued thereon, shall be 
returned to the Applicant and this Agreement shall become void. The time for completion 
of said obligations shall be not later than two (2) years from the date of this agreement or 
such later date as may be specified by formal vote of the Planning Board with the 
concurrence of the Applicant. The Planning Board shall have the right, but not the 
obligation, to use the deposit made hereunder to complete the required obligations in the 
event that the Applicant defaults.  Said deposit shall remain in place until all of the 
obligations secured hereunder are satisfactorily completed or the Planning Board seizes 
said funds and uses them to complete said obligations. Any failure by the Planning Board 
to exercise this right shall not operate as a waiver or constitute laches. Any unused portion 
of the deposit and interest accrued will be returned to the Applicant upon satisfactory 
completion of the secured obligations as determined by the Planning Board. 
 
The Applicant hereby grants a license to the Town of Harwich and the Harwich Planning 
Board and its agents to perform the obligations secured hereunder and agrees and 
hereby obligates itself to grant any easement that the Town may deem necessary to 
perform said work. 
 
In consideration of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Town, by and 
through its Planning Board, hereby accepts the aforesaid deposit in the amount 
specified as security for the performance of the obligations referenced above. 
 
Any amendments to this Agreement or to the form of the surety provided shall be 
agreed upon in writing and executed by all parties to this Agreement. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we set our hands and seals in agreement hereto this 12th day 
of August, 2020 and in consideration of the vote of taken on August 11, 2020. 
 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 

___________________________________ 

HARWICH PLANNING BOARD 

 



 

 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

Barnstable, SS.       ___________, 20___ 
 
On this ____ day of ______, 20__, before me, the undersigned notary public, personally 
appeared ___________________, a/the member(s) of the Planning Board of the Town 
of Harwich, personally known to me/who identified him/herself/themselves satisfactorily 
to me, and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to be his/her/their free act and deed 
and for the stated purpose. 

________________________________________ 
     NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires:__________________ 
  



 

 

If the Applicant is a Trust: 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I also set my hand and seal in agreement hereto this _____ 
day of ______, 20__ on behalf of the ___________________________________ Trust, 
being duly authorized to do as set forth in the documentation provided herein, and for 
consideration of good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged. 

     ______________________________ 
      Trustee (Print Name: _____________) 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
___________, SS. 
 
On this                day of                     , 20      , before me, the undersigned notary public, 
personally appeared _____________________________________, as Trustee of said 
Trust, who identified him/herself satisfactorily to me, and acknowledged the foregoing 
instrument to be his/her free act and deed and for the stated purpose. 

________________________________________ 
     NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires:__________________ 
 
 

TRUSTEE’S CERTIFICATE 
___________, Massachusetts      _________, 20___ 
 
I,                                      , hereby state under oath that I am a Trustee of the                                    
Trust (the “Trust”)), that the Trust is in full force and effect, that I am the sole Trustee of 
the Trust or am duly authorized under the terms of the Trust to make this statement and 
that the above-referenced Trustee is authorized under the Trust to enter into this 
Agreement. 
      ______________________________   

Trustee 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
 ___________, SS. 
 
On this                day of                     , 20      , before me, the undersigned notary public, 
personally appeared _____________________________________, as Trustee of said 
Trust, who identified him/herself satisfactorily to me, and acknowledged the foregoing 
instrument to be his/her free act and deed and for the stated purpose. 

________________________________________ 
     NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires:__________________ 
  



 

 

If the Applicant is a corporation: 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I also, on behalf of _____________________________ (the 
“Corporation”), being duly authorized to do so in accordance with the documentation 
provided herewith, and for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is 
hereby acknowledged, hereby set my hand and seal in agreement hereto this ______ 
day of ________, 20____.  
 
      _______________________ 
      Name of Corporation 
      By: President/Treasurer (circle one) 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 
____________, SS. 
 
On this                day of                     , 20____, before me, the undersigned notary 
public, personally appeared _____________________________________, who 
identified him/herself satisfactorily to me, and acknowledged the foregoing instrument to 
be his/her free act and deed and for the stated purpose.     
     ________________________________________ 
     NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires:__________________ 
 

CORPORATE CLERK CERTIFICATE 
___________,SS      ___________, 20___ 
 
I,                                      , the duly appointed clerk of __________________________, 
(the “Corporation”) hereby state, being under oath, hereby certify that I am the duly 
appoint clerk of the corporation and that the above named ________________ is the 
president/treasurer of the Corporation or was authorized, by a proper vote of the 
Corporation taken on __________, 20___, at a meeting of the Corporation that was duly 
convened, to enter into this Agreement on behalf of the Corporation. 
      ______________________________   

Clerk (Print Name: _______________) 

 
COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

                    , SS. 
 
On this                day of                     , 20      , before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared _____________________________________, as Clerk of the 

said Corporation, who identified him/herself satisfactorily to me, and acknowledged the 

foregoing instrument to be his/her free act and deed and for the stated purpose. 

________________________________________ 

     NOTARY PUBLIC 
My Commission Expires:__________________ 



 

 

TREASURER’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF DEPOSIT 
 
Harwich, Massachusetts 
 
This is to certify that I,                                                    , Town Treasurer for the Town of 
Harwich, Massachusetts, received a deposit of money from the Applicant in the amount 
of $                       Dollars and deposited said monies in an interest bearing/noninterest 
bearing account with the following financial institution: __________________ in account 
number ______________ on the following date: ____________. 
 
Dated:    ___________    ______________________________ 
      Town Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
521342/HARW/0001 



August 5, 2020 DRAFT WORKING DOCUMENT 

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 

P a g e  1 | 6 

 

Article ___: To see if the Town will vote to amend the Code of the Town of Harwich – Zoning, 

by adding a new Article XXIV – West Harwich Special District as follows: 

 

XXIV - West Harwich Special District 

 

§325-144 Statutory Authority and Purpose 

 

A. Statutory Authority 

On December 4, 2019, the Barnstable County Assembly of Delegates adopted Barnstable 

Ordinance 19-18 and designated the district shown on a map labeled “West Harwich 

DCPC District Boundaries” prepared by the Cape Cod Commission (“DCPC Map”) as a 

District of Critical Planning Concern (“DCPC”), pursuant to Cape Cod Commission Act 

Section 11(d). The Town created the following implementing regulations to regulate the 

DCPC which shall be known as the West Harwich Special District. 

B. Purpose 

The purpose of the West Harwich Special District (“WHSD”), as designated in 

Barnstable Ordinance 19-18, is to preserve the significant historic and architectural 

resources in the area, to guide development to be consistent with the area’s unique 

character, to address safety and transportation impacts within the commercial zone on 

Route 28, and to promote small-scale businesses consistent with the area’s character. 

 

§325-145 Intent 

It is the intent of this bylaw to encourage and incentivize the retention, preservation, creative 

reuse, change of use, or expansion of use of existing historic structures to the extent possible. 

 

§325-146 Applicability 

 

A. District Boundaries 

The boundaries of the West Harwich Special District (“WHSD”) are shown on a map 

entitled “West Harwich Special District” Map dated July 27, 2020, prepared by the Cape 

Cod Commission which is hereby made a part of this bylaw.   

B. Relationship to Other Regulations 

The provision in this Section (XXIV - West Harwich Special District) apply to all 

development within the WHSD. Other sections of the Town of Harwich Zoning Bylaw 

also apply within this special district, except that where this Section conflicts with or 

differs from other sections of the Harwich Zoning Bylaw, this Section shall control. 

 

§325-147 Definitions 

 

Historic Structures: Those structures located within the boundaries of the WHSD and 

which are identified in the Town of Harwich Historic Properties Inventory List. 

Additionally, the following properties, identified by the street address and the Assessors 

Map and Parcel, are also determined to be Historic Structures for the purposes of this 

bylaw: 

5 Route 28 – Map 10 Parcel N1-A 

Agenda Item 
III.B.2 



August 5, 2020 DRAFT WORKING DOCUMENT 

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 

P a g e  2 | 6 

 

21 Route 28 – Map 10 Parcel N5 

45 Route 28 – Map10 Parcel S4 

55 Route 28 – Map 10 Parcel U1-A 

126 Route 28 – Map 11 Parcel B5 

76 Route 28 Map 10 Parcel F7-2 

66 Route 28 – Map 10 Parcel F5 

22 Route 28 – Map 10 Parcel C6 

 

Principle Building Façade: The front plane of the building wall closest to the road 

frontage, not including stoops, porches, or other appurtenances, and measuring at least 25 

feet in length. 

 

§325-148 Permitted Uses 

The following uses are permitted within the WHSD; however, for some uses either a Staff Plan 

Review, pursuant to §325-152.A or a Site Plan Review Special Permit may also be required, 

pursuant to §325-55: 

A. Single-Family Dwelling 

B. Two-Family Dwelling 

C. Uses Accessory to a Single- or Two-Family Dwelling  

D. Bed and Breakfast 

E. Home Occupation 

F. Single family dwelling and accessory apartment 

G. Church or other religious use 

H. Non-profit Library, Museum or Historical Use 

I. Hotel 

J. Motel  

K. Hotel, Motel – Incidental Use 

L. Professional Offices, including Dental Offices and Blue Economy 

M. Municipal Uses 

 

Additionally, the following uses are permitted in historic structures: 

 

N. Multifamily 

O. Retail sales 

P. Restaurant 

Q. Mixed-Use commercial/residential developments 

 

§325-149 Special Permit Uses 

For new construction or reuse or change of use of structure or building not identified as an 

historic structure, the following uses are conditionally allowed within the WHSD through the 

Planning Board as the special permit granting authority, provided the use does not conflict with 

the purpose of the district, and for some uses a Site Plan Approval pursuant to §325-55 and the 

provisions of §325-153 shall be required: 

 

A. Multifamily 



August 5, 2020 DRAFT WORKING DOCUMENT 

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 

P a g e  3 | 6 

 

B. Retail sales, greater than 1,000 square feet of gross floor area and/or exterior space. 

C. Restaurant 

D. Mixed-Use commercial/residential developments 

 

§325-150 Prohibited Uses 

Any use not specifically allowed as of right or by Special Permit within this district are 

prohibited. Within this district, use variances shall be prohibited. 

 

§325-151 Continuation of Pre-Existing Non-Conforming Uses 

Any lawfully existing use of a structure or land that does not conform to the provisions of this 

bylaw may continue.  

 

§325-152 Change, Alteration, Expansion of Pre-Existing Non-Conforming Uses and/or 

Structures 

Notwithstanding the provisions of M.G.L Chapter 40A, and §325-54 of the Harwich Zoning 

Bylaw, lawfully established structures and uses in existence as of December 4, 2019 that do not 

conform to the WHSD District Wide Development Standards may be changed, altered or 

expanded in conformance with §325-154 Review Standards and Procedures. 

 

A. A pre-existing, non-conforming structure or use may change or expand up to 250 square 

feet of gross building footprint or exterior of building or site area through Staff Plan 

Review in accordance with the provisions of §325-154 provided it does not involve 

demolition of significant parts of an historic structure. Said application shall be made to 

the Planning Department and a written decision shall be rendered within 30-days of 

receipt. Said decision shall be consistent with the provisions of §325-154 and may be 

appealed to the Planning Board with written notice within 10-days. Said decision shall be 

lapse two (2) years from the date of issuance unless construction or operation under the 

approval has commenced. 

B. A pre-existing, non-conforming structure or use may change or expand up to 1000 square 

feet of building footprint or exterior of building or site area or undergo a change of use in 

accordance with §325-55.F Waivers, provided the following criteria are determined to be 

met: 

1. There shall be no more than one curb cut on to Route 28 and where practical, a 

driveway connection (shared driveway) shall be provided to an adjacent property; 

2. A landscaped area of at least 10 feet in depth shall be provided and maintained on 

the subject property along its road frontage.  Any property with existing parking 

in front of the building will reduce the size of said parking area by at least 20% 

and will provide screening of said parking through landscape plantings and/or a 

low fence or wall. No expansion of parking in the front yard area is permitted;  

3. The specific change or expansion shall comply with all dimensional standards in 

the WHSD enumerated in Section 325-154.A; and, 

4. There shall be no demolition of an historic structure. 

 

Said decision shall lapse two (2) years from the date of issuance unless construction or 

operation under the approval has commenced. 



August 5, 2020 DRAFT WORKING DOCUMENT 

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 

P a g e  4 | 6 

 

C. A pre-existing non-conforming structure or use that proposes to change or expand more 

than 1,000 square feet of building footprint or exterior of building or site area requires 

Site Plan Approval pursuant to §325-55. The specific change or expansion shall comply 

with all dimensional standards in the WHSD pursuant to §325-154.A and B.  

 

§325-153 New Construction 

For new construction Site Plan Approval pursuant to §325-55 and all dimensional requirements 

of §325-154.A and B shall be required. 

  

§325-154 Review Standards 

 

A. Dimensional requirements. 

1. Lots shall have frontage along Route 28. Adjacent parcels may be included provided 

that they are under the same ownership and are also located within the WHSD.  

2. Setback requirements. 

a. Front setback requirements for the principle building façade shall be a minimum 

of 20 feet and maximum of 40 feet.  

b. Side lot line setback shall be a minimum of 10 feet. 

c. Rear lot line setback shall be a minimum of 20 feet. 

d. Parking shall be permitted at the side, measured a minimum of 10 feet back from 

the principle building facade on the property, or rear of the property. 

e. Maximum site coverage shall not exceed 80%. 

3. The maximum permitted height for new constructions shall not exceed 30 feet or 

2 1/2 stories.  

4. Minimum lot size shall be 20,000 square feet. 

5. For properties containing and maintaining/reusing historic structures, the Planning 

Board or its designee may waive or modify these dimensional requirements if it is 

found that such waiver or modification will not substantially derogate from the 

purpose and intent of this bylaw and that such waiver or modification may be granted 

without substantial detriment to the neighborhood or overall public good. 

6. The maximum length allowable for the principle building façade is 50 feet and 

adjacent street-facing building facades shall be stepped back a minimum of 10 feet 

from the principal building facade.  

7. A maximum building footprint of 2,000 square feet for front street-facing buildings is 

allowable; and a maximum footprint of 4,000 square feet for buildings sited behind a 

front street-facing building is allowable. 

B. Parking, Driveway, Vehicular and Pedestrian Access Standards 

1. Parking 

a. Parking areas shall be visually buffered from all streets and adjoining residential 

uses by placing them behind frontage buildings and/or through the use of berms 

or natural features and/or plantings, using materials that shall be maintained for 

visual buffering a minimum of 50% and 75% of their effectiveness year-round, 

for streets and residential uses respectively. Parking shall also comply with the 

requirements of Article IX – Off Street Parking and Loading Requirements. 



August 5, 2020 DRAFT WORKING DOCUMENT 

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 

P a g e  5 | 6 

 

b. Shared Parking – The number of parking spaces required may be reduced for 

shared parking at the discretion of the Planning Board through Site Plan Review 

§325-55, provided such reduction does not shift a demand for parking onto public 

streets or any areas not equipped to handle such activity. 

c. All other parking standards shall comply with Article IX Off-Street Parking and 

Loading Requirements; however, in no case shall a driveway width be greater 

than 24 feet. 

2. A driveway shall be limited to one per street frontage; however shared driveways are 

encouraged to limit the number of curb cuts onto Route 28. Driveways must be 

situated to provide for the optimal sight distance along Route 28. All driveway access 

shall provide for adequate service and emergency access. All driveway shall comply 

with §325-154.B.1.b. and c. above. 

3. Commercial and residential pedestrian access shall include a combination of 

walkways and landscaping. Such pedestrian access shall be provided from the streets 

providing frontage and/or access for the project as well as the drives and parking 

areas within the project. Pedestrian access routes shall be laid out to minimize conflict 

with vehicular routes, and where they intersect, the pedestrian route shall be clearly 

marked on the vehicular surface and when appropriate, with signage. Pedestrian 

access routes shall be lighted to provide adequate visibility for use in the dark, and in 

conformance with Article XXI Outdoor Lighting. 

 

and further 

 

Amend §325-2 Word Usage and Definition, “Overlay District”, add a new item G, as follows: 

“G - West Harwich Special District, see Article XXIV” 

 

And further, 

 

Amend §325-3 Division of Town into Districts, by adding “West Harwich Special District”  

 

and further, 

 

Amend §325-4 Maps, by adding Subparagraph F as follows: 

 

F. The West Harwich Special District established hereunder as shown on a map titled, 

“West Harwich Special District” dated July 27, 2020, prepared by the Cape Cod 

Commission, a copy of which can be found as an attachment to this chapter in the town’s 

online Code and a copy of which is on file in the office of the Town Clerk. 

  



August 5, 2020 DRAFT WORKING DOCUMENT 

FOR DISCUSSION PURPOSES ONLY 

P a g e  6 | 6 

 

 

 

 


